
I. MEETING COMMENCES 
Roll Call 

II. MINUTES APPROVAL

a. Approval of meeting minutes from May 25, 2022

III. NEW BUSINESS: PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. 27 Qualey Road-Undue Hardship Variance:
 
Paul Zagami is requesting a undue hardship variance for a 5-foot reduction of a 25-foot front
line (road) setback and a 3-foot reduction of a 10-foot side line setback to reconstruct a
residential dwelling unit on his property located at 27 Qualey Road, Tax Map 32. lot 304-3, in a
Limited Residential (Shoreland) Zoning District.
 

b. 71 Portland Road-Administrative Appeal:

Elvin and Randall Copp have filed an administrative appeal of a Notice of Violation dated April
28, 2022, regarding the use of their property located at 71 Portland Road, Tax Map 52, lot 32-
24, in a Commercial Zoning District and two Shoreland Districts; Resource Protection and
Limited Commercial.

IV. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

TOWN OF GRAY
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

AGENDA • JUNE 22, 2022

Zoning Board of
Appeals Regular
Meeting

Henry Pennell Municipal Complex
24 Main Street
Gray, Maine

7:00 PM

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
* The Town of Gray is an equal opportunity employer and complies with all applicable equal access to
public accommodations law. If you are planning to attend a Town Council or Town committee or board
meeting and need assistance with a physical disability, please contact the Town Manager’s office at
least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to have the Town assist you. 657-3339. TTY 657-3931.

1



TOWN OF GRAY
GRAY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MINUTES – MAY 25, 2022

Gray ZBA Henry Pennell Municipal Complex                              7:00 PM
Regular Meeting__________ 24 Main Street, Gray, ME 04039________________________   

Before the actual meeting began, Brad Fogg – Chair made three quick announcements:  1.  To remind citizens of 
the Town of Gray to make sure they get to the polls and vote for Town Councilors on June 14, 2022.  2.  On the 
GCTV Page on the Town’s Website is the link for the Town Councilor candidate’s forum to get to know the Town 
Councilor candidates better.  3.  GCTV is looking for locally produced programming.  He then stated that in August 
2022, the Zoning Board of Appeals will have two vacancies.  He explained they need three voting members in order 
to have a quorum, of which this meeting has.  He said he encourages people to apply for vacancies.

I.       MEETING COMMENCED AT 7:00 PM
This meeting took place in-person at the Town Office and via “Zoom” and began at 7:09 pm.

Roll Call:
Attendee Name Title Status

Brad Fogg Chair Present
Lena Reichardt Vice Chair Present
John Swiger Regular Board Member Present
Joshua Sibert Regular Board Member Absent
Tammy Munson Code Enforcement Officer Present
Martin Meaney Council Liaison Absent

II.       MINUTES APPROVAL: The following motion was made.
MOTION: by John Swiger, seconded by Lena Reichardt, to approve the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting minutes of 

February 23, 2022, as presented.
VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).

III. NEW BUSINESS:  PUBLIC HEARINGS:
a.          Randall Variance Request:  Martyn Randall Jr. is requesting a Practical Difficulty Variance for 

a 30-foot reduction of a 50-foot rear setback to construct a pool and adjacent patio on his property located at 147 
Ramsdell Road, Gray Tax Map 33, Lots 14-17, in a Rural Residential & Agricultural Zoning District. This property 
is located in the RRA Zoning District.

The following motion was made to open this Public Hearing.
MOTION: by John Swiger, seconded by Lena Reichardt to hear the Public Hearing request by Martyn Randall for a 

Practical Difficulty Variance for a 30-foot reduction for construction of a swimming pool.
VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).

Present at this meeting was Martyn Randall Jr.  He said he is requesting a 30-foot reduction for construction 
of a swimming pool.  He explained why the variance is needed.  He stated that the property is an odd shape.  It is quite 
long.  It is 487 feet long.  Its depth is roughly 176 feet.  There is a small building envelope the house was built on in 
2020.  The landscaping is done.  This is the only good place to put this without affecting streams, getting to near the 
septic system etc.  He needs the variance in order to position the pool.  He does not want to affect the natural stream 
that is there.  This is a very small area.  The pool is not big.  They want to put a patio around it and make it look 
aesthetically nice.  This is a condensed area where they would like to put it.  He had pictures available to present.  He 
said he does not want to encroach on the leach field.  

Lena Reichardt said the building envelop is only 58-feet wide.  John Swiger said he found his package very 
complete and informative.  

When asked, Tammy Munson, the new Code Enforcement Officer, said she had no comments, at this time.  
At this point, Brad Fogg introduced Tammy Munson.  She then thanked him and said she was glad to be here.

2



The main motion was made.
MOTION: by Lena Reichardt, seconded by John Swiger to grant the Practical Difficulty Variance for a 30-foot reduction

of a 50-foot rear setback to construct a pool and adjacent patio on his property located at 147 Ramsdell Road, 
Gray Tax Map 33, Lots 14-17, in a Rural Residential & Agricultural Zoning District.  

VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).
The following motions and brief discussions were made on the Criteria Questions 1-6, per the Gray Zoning Ordinance 

402.9.2.B.3.
MOTION: by John Swiger, seconded by Brad Fogg, that the need for a variance is due to the unique circumstances of the 

property and not to the general condition of the neighborhood.
VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).

Lena said being such a narrow lot, it is a condensed building envelop, to have the impact of the septic there, 
and the hill, and the stream, it does seem it would be difficult to put it within the building envelop.
MOTION: by John Swiger, seconded by Lena Reichardt, that the granting of a variance will not produce an undesirable 

change in the character of the neighborhood and will not unreasonably detrimentally affect the use or market 
value of abutting properties.

VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).
Lena said having a pool is a typical characteristic of a residential neighborhood.  Brad stated that there is no 

negative affect to the neighbors of Ramsdell Road.
MOTION: by John Swiger, seconded by Brad Fogg, that the practical difficulty is not the result of action taken by the 

petitioner or a prior owner.
VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).

Lena said it is likely that this house and lot existed before the setbacks were what they were.  It is not anything 
that somebody created an issue in error.  Brad said that this is not something that was man-made and created.  It is 
natural lot conditions.
MOTION: by John Swiger, seconded by Lena Reichardt, that no other feasible alternative to a variance is available to the 

petitioner.
VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).

Lena said that this is the one she struggles with more than any of the others, but feasible is subjective.  She 
said it sounds like the property owner has done his due diligence.  She feels the Board should be supportive of his 
desires to make sure he is not creating additional issues or impacts to the stream, etc.  All the possible alternatives 
have been well thought out.  She said this makes the most sense.  John said the safety concerns presented for the other 
options clearly lead you back to the original location he presented.  At this point in the discussion, Brad asked if this 
is an in-ground or above-ground pool?  Martyn responded that it is an in-ground pool.
MOTION: by John Swiger, seconded by Brad Fogg, that the granting of a variance will not unreasonably adversely affect 

the natural environment.
VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).

Lena said that this has been covered in several of the other conditions or requirements.  This is the best 
possible location for the natural environment.  John said that this is the least impactful option available on that lot.
MOTION: by John Swiger, seconded by Lena Reichardt, that the property is not located in whole or in part within 

shoreland areas as described in Title 38, Section 435.
VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).

Lena said that this makes this much easier to review.  Brad said that the small stream is certainly no 
consideration, but it is there.

There was no discussion on the main motion.  All the Board Members were in favor of the main motion and the 
consensus of the Board was that all the Criteria Items have been met with a vote of 3-0.  Brad told the appellant that seven days is 
needed to prepare for the Board Chairs signature.  Lena said the Notice of Decision will need to be recorded.

Lena then thanked the appellant for putting together a very thorough packet.
b. Ryan Variance Request:  Thomas Ryan & Brenda Johnson are requesting a Practical Difficulty 

Variance for a 7-foot reduction of a 25-foot side setback for an existing deck attached to their house located at 93 
Long Hill Road, Gray Tax Map 59, Lot 37-6-2 in a Rural Residential & Agricultural Zoning District.  This property 
is located in the RRA Zoning District.

The following motion was made to open this Public Hearing.
MOTION: by John Swiger, seconded by Lena Reichardt to hear the Public Hearing request by Thomas Ryan & Brenda 

Johnson for a Practical Difficulty Variance for a 7-foot reduction of an existing deck.
VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).

Present at this meeting was Brenda Johnson.  She stated that she is a co-owner.  She provided a summary of 
why she is asking for a practical difficulty for her project.  She said there is an existing deck that was there when they 

3



purchased the home.  She is not sure how long it has been there.  They would like to keep the deck, if possible.  Brenda 
said that the surveyor came.  Lena said that this is a 7-foot encroachment.  Brenda commented that this structure was 
there when they purchased the home.  Lena commented that a copy of the Warranty Deed is in the packet.  There is 
also a sketch for mortgage purposes only.

Brad wanted to confirm that this was the existing original lot, as it was designed.  Lena said there have been 
no boundary changes since 1999.    Tammy Munson said the file on this property was very minimal.  There was very 
little information.  There was no inspection records and no permit for the deck.  There was an original permit to build 
the house in the file.  There were no building plans or site plan attached to the placard in the file.  No permits were 
filed for the deck.  

Lena asked the appellant when the house was built.  Brenda responded that it was built in 1999 and is in 
pretty good shape.

The main motion was made.
MOTION: by Lena Reichardt, seconded by John Swiger, to grant the Practical Difficulty Variance for a 7-foot reduction

of a 25-foot side setback for an existing deck attached to their house located at 93 Long Hill Road, Gray Tax 
Map 59, Lot 37-6-2 in a Rural Residential & Agricultural Zoning District.  

VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).
The following motions and brief discussions were made on the Criteria Questions 1-6, per the Gray Zoning Ordinance 

402.9.2.B.3.
MOTION: by John Swiger, seconded by Brad Fogg, that the need for a variance is due to the unique circumstances of the 

property and not to the general condition of the neighborhood.
VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).

Brad said, due to the unique circumstances of the property – the unique circumstance is that somebody built 
the deck without telling the Town and there is no Town authorization to build the deck.  The deck was built improperly.  
To take it down would have a negative impact.  It is not the current owner’s fault.  Lena asked if there is any additional 
information to give the Board as to why that location lends it better.  John asked if there is a reason that she is aware 
of why the house was set so far as to one boundary.  He asked if there were wetlands, stream, slope, etc. that are
unfavorable.  Brenda responded none that she is aware of.  Brad asked if that is the only exterior door.  Brenda 
responded no and that there is a side door.  Lena said the side door goes toward the front setback of where the right-
of-way (ROW) is.  Brad said the deck would be exposed to the road front.  This would not be a possible location for 
a deck.  Brenda said there is a front door and a door to the right of the house and around back is the deck.  She showed 
the Board the door locations.  Lena said this is impractical to have a deck there.  She also said the location of the house 
on the property is a bit unique in that it is tucked into the corner, and it does not leave a lot of options.  Brad said the 
current owners had no control of where the house was built.  
MOTION: by John Swiger, seconded by Lena Reichardt, that the granting of a variance will not produce an undesirable 

change in the character of the neighborhood and will not unreasonably detrimentally affect the use or market 
value of abutting properties.

VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).
This is an easy piece to justify.  Brad asked if there is a neighbor on the back side of the deck.  Brenda responded that 

there is a stone wall.  There are no houses there.
MOTION: by John Swiger, seconded by Brad Fogg, that the practical difficulty is not the result of action taken by the 

petitioner or a prior owner.
VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).

Lena said she struggles with this one.  With the house being built in 1999, the setbacks very likely existed 
prior to the deck being built.  Because the deck was put in this location, by a prior owner, does not necessarily make 
the Practical Difficulty the case of the prior owner if there wasn’t another feasible location that was more feasible.  
John said Code Enforcement is saying a permit was never sought.  He asked is it the Town’s position that there would 
not have been a chance that a permit could have been filed and approved, just not in the file.  Or it was legally built at 
the time.  Tammy responded that any permits taken out would be in that file.  He then asked Tammy if she was aware 
if the setbacks have changed since 1999 until now.  Tammy responded not that she is aware of.  She said the Town 
does not know who built the deck.  She said the Town assumes that there was only one owner.  She said the Town 
does not know who built that deck technically.  John said there has only been one previous owner.  The previous owner 
had it built at their direction, or some other strange thing occurred.  Brad said he struggles with this also.  He said we 
do know the prior owner is probably the contributing factor.  However, how does the current occupant prevent any 
type of legal action by the prior owner.  He is looking at this for a new request for a permit for the deck and the need 
for two feet even though it is existing.  He said how can a new owner control the actions of a prior owner.  Brad said 
no evidence has been produced from anyone concerned about the granting of this to document that.  This was the 
actions of the prior owner, but no documentation has been if it was.  Nobody has come forth to testify that they did.  

4



Lena said she cannot come up with a scenario of how this could have possibly happened.  Tammy provided a few 
scenarios of how she thought this could have happened.  John said we do not have anybody this evening presenting 
testimony that they do know that it was a prior owner or objecting to this because the prior owner did not follow the 
proper permitting.  
MOTION: by John Swiger, seconded by Lena Reichardt, that no other feasible alternative to a variance is available to the 

petitioner.
VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).

John said the only other option is to tear it down.  Lena commented that there is an expense to tear the deck 
off.
MOTION: by John Swiger, seconded by Brad Fogg, that the granting of a variance will not unreasonably adversely affect 

the natural environment.
VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).

Lena said there is no adverse effects and no evidence that there has never been an issue as to where it is.  
MOTION: by John Swiger, seconded by Brad Fogg, that the property is not located in whole or in part within shoreland 

areas as described in Title 38, Section 435.
VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).

This is not located in a Shoreland Zone.  It is in the RRA Zoning District.
All the Board Members were in favor of the main motion and the consensus of the Board was that all the Criteria Items 

have been met with a vote of 3-0.
Brad asked Tammy if the Board were to grant the motion, would it be legal to stipulate in addition to granting the motion, 

that a side rail be built.  Tammy asked Brenda if the deck is over 30 inches in height or how many steps up to the deck?  She said 
you can grant the variance and if there is anything in violation that that be corrected or you can say that any part of the deck that is 
30 inches above grade, then you ask for a guardrail to be installed.  John said the better amendment is that the deck meet all aspects 
of the building code.  He suggested giving Code Enforcement the opportunity of inspecting the deck at least once.  Tammy 
suggested that the better way to handle this is that an After-The-Fact (ATF) Permit could be granted for this deck.  She suggested
granting the variance with a condition of approval.

The following amendment to the above main motion was made.
AMENDED
MOTION: by Lena Reichardt, seconded by John Swiger to amend the main motion to include a condition requiring the 

applicant to seek a building permit for the deck.
VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).

Brad said the Town will notify Brenda when the paperwork is done and what she will need to do after that.
John Swiger thanked Tammy Munson for joining the Town as the new Code Enforcement Officer.  He said 

she has been incredibly helpful and informative.

IV. ADJOURNMENT:  The following motion was made to adjourn the meeting.
MOTION: by Lena Reichardt, seconded by John Swiger, to adjourn the meeting at 7:52 p.m.
VOTED: 3-0 (Passed).

Respectfully submitted,

Doreen M. Christ
Transcriptionist/Minute Taker - Town of Gray

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49


	Zoning Board of Appeals Agenda
	Item II.a - ZBA Minutes 5-25-22.docx
	Item III.a - 27 Qualey Rd-Variance 6-22-22.pdf
	Item III.b - 71 Portland Rd-Appeal-Copp.pdf
	Item III.b - Copp NOV Final with attachments.pdf

